
 

 

Great Falls Public Safety Advisory Committee Agenda 

 2 Park Drive South, Great Falls, MT 

Gibson Room, Civic Center 

May 1, 2024 

6:00 PM 

  
 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME - Commissioner McKenney 

 

ROLL CALL & INTRODUCTIONS 

  Please limit to one minute 

 

PURPOSE OF COMMITTEE - Commissioners Wilson and McKenney 

 Includes: Review of Resolution 10544, intent, desired outcomes 

  

ELECTION OF COMMITTEE OFFICERS - Commissioner McKenney (until a chair is selected) 

 Chair selection 

Vice Chair selection  

 

COMMITTEE HOUSEKEEPING – New Chair 

 Includes:  Meeting Etiquette 

   Code of Ethics 

   Public Participation Process 

   Frequency of meetings (day and time have been determined) 

   Length of meetings 

   Notification of Absence 

 

OPENING EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

 City Attorney Dennis 

 Judge Bolstad and Judge Dunn 

 

MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM COMMITTEE 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public Comment on any matter and that is within the jurisdiction of the Committee. Please keep your remarks to a maximum 

of five (5) minutes. Speak into the microphone, and state your name and either your address or whether you are a city 

resident for the record.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Next Scheduled meeting May ___, 2024 6:00 p.m. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 10544 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF GREAT 

FALLS, MONTANA, ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE  
 
 

WHEREAS, the protection of life and property is amongst the highest priorities of the City 

of Great Falls; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to mounting community concerns about the City’s increasing crime 

rates, and that first responders are increasingly called upon for requests such as homelessness, 

mental health, and domestic disputes which often require connection to ongoing services, the Great 

Falls City Commission established the Great Falls Crime Task Force in 2021 for the primary 

purpose to study, review, evaluate, and make recommendations to the City Commission, City 

Manager, and general public on strategies to address crime.  The Crime Task Force provided 

numerous recommendations that were further summarized into action items; and  

 

WHEREAS, upon further discussions with the City Commission, there was general 

recognition that the City’s broader public safety response posture was inadequate, and is unable to 

service current and future needs of a growing community.  The General Fund, capped by a 

statewide property tax cap, is unable to sufficiently meet the service level desired by the taxpayers 

and fund the broad continuum of public safety needs across fire, police, court and legal 

departments; and 

 

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing and that the last successful voter approved safety 

request was in the late 1960’s, the City Commission adopted Resolutions in 2023 that submitted 

to the electors the questions of permanently increasing the mill levies of the City to pay costs of 

public safety services and issuing general obligation bonds for the purpose of paying costs of 

public safety improvements; and  

 

 WHEREAS, due to both those ballot measures being turned down by the voters at the 

November 7, 2023 election, the Great Falls City Commission seeks to establish a Public Safety 

Advisory Committee to make recommendations on public safety funding and/or service reduction 

in Great Falls. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF GREAT FALLS, MONTANA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION 1: There is hereby established the Great Falls Public Safety Advisory 

Committee (hereinafter referred to as “PSAC”).  The efforts of the PSAC shall be focused on the 

following areas: 

 

 

 Recommend broad priorities for public safety; 

 Recommend priorities for Police, Fire, Court and Legal Departments; 



 Recommend strategies for funding public safety priorities;  

 Recommend Strategies to engage a broad spectrum of community members and 

businesses                                      

 

SECTION 2:  MEMBERSHIP:  Sandra Guynn, Mike Parcel, Wendy McKamey, Jeni 

Dodd, George Nikolakakos, Aaron Weissman, Tony Rosales, Thad Reiste, Joe McKenney, and 

Shannon Wilson. 

 

SECTION 3:  MEETINGS AND RULES:  Pursuant to Montana’s open meeting laws, all 

meetings of the PSAC shall be properly noticed at least 48 hours in advance of a meeting, include 

an agenda of topics/items to be discussed, allow for public comment on agenda items and for 

public comment on items not on the agenda but within the jurisdiction of the PSAC.  Appropriate 

Minutes of all meetings shall be kept and be made available for inspection by the public.  

 

SECTION 4: The PSAC members shall select a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson.  The 

City Manager shall appoint a staff member to keep all records of the PSAC and take minutes of 

all meetings, and submit them to the City Clerk.  A majority of the membership shall constitute a 

quorum. The PSAC shall meet as often as necessary to accomplish its general purpose, as described 

in Section 1, but not less than once a month.  

 

SECTION 5: Members of the PSAC shall comply with the Code of Ethics set forth in 

Mont. Code Ann. § Title 2, Chapter 2, and the Official Code of the City of Great Falls (OCCGF) 

Title 2, Chapter 21.  

 

SECTION 6: The PSAC shall meet with the goals of having recommendations to present 

to the City Commission no later than September 2, 2024.  The PSAC shall be disbanded and cease 

to exist after receipt of the recommendations by the City Commission. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of Great Falls, Montana, 

this 2nd day of April, 2024. 

 

                 ______________________________ 

                            Cory Reeves, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Lisa Kunz, City Clerk 

 

 

 (SEAL OF CITY) 

 

 

APPROVED FOR LEGAL CONTENT: 

 

_________________________________ 

David Dennis, City Attorney 



Title 2 - ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL 
Chapter 21 CODE OF ETHICS 

 

 

 

Great Falls , Montana, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 1 of 6 

Chapter 21 CODE OF ETHICS 

Sections: 

2.21.010 Title. 

This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the "City of Great Falls Code of Ethics."  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.020 Findings. 

The City Commission of the City of Great Falls finds and declares that:  

A. Public office and employment are a public trust;  

B. The vitality and stability of representative democracy depends upon the public's confidence in the 
integrity of its elected and appointed representatives; and  

C. Governments have the duty both to provide their citizens with standards by which they may determine 
whether public duties are being faithfully performed, and to apprise their officers and employees of 
the behavior which is expected of them while conducting such duties.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.030 Purpose and authority. 

It is the purpose of this chapter to provide a method of assuring that standards of ethical conduct for officers and 
employees of the City of Great Falls shall be clear, consistent, uniform in their application, enforceable, and to 
provide those officers or employees with advice and information concerning possible conflicts of interest which 
might arise in the conduct of their public duties. Such ethical standards shall inspire and stimulate each officer and 
employee to:  

A. Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by responsible elected 
officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the achievement of this 
objective;  

B. Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a constructive, 
creative and practical attitude toward urban affairs and a deep sense of social responsibility as a 
trusted public servant;  

C. Be dedicated to the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public and personal relationships so that 
each public servant may merit the respect and confidence of elected officials, of other officials and 
employees, and of the public; and  

D. Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best interests of all of 
the people.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 2 of 6 

2.21.040 Definitions. 

As used in this section:  

A. "Agency" means any agency, board, governing body, including the chief executive officer, office, 
commission, or other instrumentality within the City of Great Falls, and any independent local 
authority created by or appointed under the authority of the City of Great Falls.  

B. "Business organization" means any corporation, partnership, firm, enterprise, franchise, association, 
trust, sole proprietorship, union, or other legal entity.  

C. "Employee" means any person, whether compensated or not, whether part-time or full-time, 
employed by or serving on an agency, who is not a local government officer.  

D. "Interest" means the ownership or control of more than ten (10) percent of the profits, assets or stock 
of a business organization, but shall not include the control of assets in a non-profit entity or labor 
union.  

E. "Member of immediate family" means the spouse or dependent child of an officer or employee 
residing in the same household.  

F. "Officer" means any person whether compensated or not, whether part-time or full-time, who is one 
(1) of the following:  

1. Member of the City Commission;  

2. City Manager;  

3. Deputy City Manager;  

4. Director, Department of Finance;  

5. Director, Department of Planning and Community Development;  

6. Director, Department of Public Works;  

7. Director, Department of Parks and Recreation;  

8. Chief of Police;  

9. City Clerk;  

10. City Attorney;  

11. Municipal Judge;  

12. Fire Chief;  

13. Library Director;  

14. Human Resources Director;  

15. Housing Authority Director; or  

16. A member of any City board, council, committee, or commission.  

G. "Officer or employee" means an officer or employee of the City of Great Falls or of an agency under the 
authority of or appointed by the City Commission.  

(Ord. 3183, 2017; Ord. 3169, 2017). 



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 3 of 6 

2.21.050 Ethical standards. 

In addition to complying with the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. Title 2, Chapter 2, officers and employees of the 
City of Great Falls shall comply with the following provisions:  

A. No officer or employee of the City of Great Falls shall have an interest in a business organization or 
engage in any business, transaction, or professional activity which is in substantial conflict with the 
proper discharge of his or her governmental duties;  

B. No officer or employee shall use, or attempt to use, his or her official position to secure unwarranted 
privileges or advantages for himself, herself or others;  

C. No officer or employee shall act in his or her official capacity in any matter where he or she, a member 
of his or her immediate family, or any business organization in which he or she has an interest, has a 
direct or indirect financial or personal involvement that might reasonably be expected to:  

1. impair his or her objectivity or independence or judgment, or  

2. substantially conflict with the proper discharge of officer or employee's governmental duties;  

D. No officer or employee shall undertake any private employment or service which might prejudice his or 
her independent judgment in the exercise of his or her official duties;  

E. No officer or employee, any member of his or her immediate family, or any business organization in 
which he or she has an interest shall solicit or accept any gift, favor, political contribution, service, 
promise of future employment, or other thing of value for the purpose of influencing him or her, 
directly or indirectly, in the discharge of his or her official duties, the appearance of impropriety must 
be avoided by the acceptance of such a gift;  

F. No officer or employee shall use, or allow to be used, his or her public office or employment or any 
information, not generally available to the members of the public, which he or she receives or acquires 
in the course of employment, for the purpose of securing financial gain for himself or herself, any 
member of his or her immediate family, or any business organization with which he or she is 
associated;  

G. No officer or employee, or any business organization in which he or she has an interest, shall represent 
any other person or party except the City in connection with any cause, proceeding, application, or 
other matter pending before any agency of the City of Great Falls; except in the process of collective 
bargaining for public employees or where any officer or employee or members of his or her immediate 
family shall represent himself, herself or themselves, in negotiations or proceedings concerning his, 
her, or their own interests;  

H. No officer shall be in conflict with these provisions if, by reason of his or her participation in the 
enactment of any ordinance, resolution or other matter required to be voted upon, no particular 
material or monetary gain accrues to him or her, or his or her immediate family;  

I. No elected officer shall be prohibited from making an inquiry for information on behalf of a constituent 
if in return, no fee, reward, or other thing of value is directly or indirectly promised to or accepted by 
the officer or a member of his or her immediate family;  

J. No officer or employee, elected or appointed in the City, shall without receiving formal written 
authorization from the appropriate person or body, disclose any confidential information concerning 
any other officer or employee or any other person or any property or governmental affairs of the City;  



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 4 of 6 

K. No officer or employee shall approve, disapprove, or in any way recommend the payment of any bill, 
voucher, or indebtedness in which he or she has direct or indirect interests except reimbursement for 
proper expenses otherwise approved by the City Manager;  

L. No officer or employee shall request, use, or permit the use of any public property, vehicle, equipment, 
labor, or service for personal convenience or advantage for himself or any other person; except where 
it is the general practice to make the same available to the public at large, or where the same is 
provided pursuant to stated public policy for the use of officials and employees in the conduct of 
official business;  

M. All officers or employees shall exercise prudence and integrity in management of public funds in their 
custody and in all financial transactions;  

N. All officers or employees shall uphold the letter and spirit of the constitution, statutes, and regulations 
governing their duties and report violations of the law to appropriate authorities;  

O. All officers or employees shall be sensitive and responsive to the concerns and questions of the public; 
and  

P. All officers, whether elected or appointed, shall file a signed written disclosure with the City Clerk, and 
City Attorney, disclosing any appearance of a violation of this chapter, and said disclosure may, within 
the City Manager's discretion, be forwarded to the Great Falls Ethics Committee for determination if a 
violation of this chapter exists and appropriate course of action.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.060 Great Falls Ethics Committee established. 

The City Commission hereby establishes The Great Falls Ethics Committee hereinafter referred to in this chapter as 
the "Committee."  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.070 Committee purpose. 

The purpose of the Committee is to ensure that all City officers and employees are performing their duties in 
compliance with the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. Title 2, Chapter 2, and the provisions of this chapter.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.080 Committee membership. 

A. Subject to the provisions provided in Subsection (B.) of this part, the Committee shall consist of three (3) 
members and one (1) alternate member, who shall be appointed and ready to serve in the event that a 
Committee member is unable or unavailable to serve. The members and alternate shall be appointed by the 
City Commission for not more than three (3) consecutive, three-year terms. Members shall be qualified 
electors and residents of the City. Members shall not be City employees. As is reasonably possible, the 
members shall have experience and or training in the following:  

1. Public administration;  

2. Governmental operation;  

3. Political practices; or  



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 5 of 6 

4. Legal practice.  

B. The first appointee to the Great Falls Ethics Committee shall serve an initial term of three (3) years, the 
second appointee shall serve an initial term of two (2) years, and the third appointee shall serve an initial 
term of one (1) year. Following the expiration of these initial terms, the provisions of Subsection (A.) of this 
part shall apply.  

( Ord. 3201 ; 2019, Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.090 Committee meeting schedule. 

The Committee shall meet on an as needed basis, no more frequently than once a month, after a matter has been 
referred to the Committee by direction of the City Manager or City Attorney. Committee meetings shall be held in 
the Civic Center and shall be open to the public, pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. Titles 2 and 7. Committee meeting 
minutes shall be maintained by the City Clerk.  

( Ord. 3203 , 2019; Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.100 Committee duties. 

The Committee shall meet and be presented testimony regarding matters referred to it. When considering an 
ethics complaint, the Committee shall determine whether a complaint appears to be substantiated based on the 
information and testimony presented. If the Committee determines that a complaint appears to be substantiated, 
it may refer the matter to the Cascade County Attorney, or to the supervisor of a public employee who may be the 
subject of the complaint, for disposition. The Committee shall make written findings of its decision, which will be 
filed with the City Clerk.  

( Ord. 3201 ; 2019, Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.110 Nepotism. 

All personnel matters shall be administered on the basis of merit and through regular management procedure.  

A. No one participating actively in the appointment of a position, i.e., City Commissioners, City Manager, 
representatives of the Human Resources Department, the appointing department head, or division 
head, shall appoint any person related or connected by consanguinity within the fourth degree or by 
affinity within the second degree;  

1. "Consanguinity" means blood relation and degrees are determined as follows:  

i. Parent and child are of the first degree;  

ii. Grandparents, grandchildren, brothers and sisters are of the second degree;  

iii. Uncles, aunts, nephews, nieces and great grandparents are of the third degree; and  

iv. First cousins, great uncles and great aunts and great-great grandparents are of the fourth 
degree.  

2. "Affinity" means a relationship by marriage and the degrees are determined as follows:  

i. Husband and wife are of the first degree; and  

ii. Brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, fathers-in-law and mothers-in-law are of the second degree.  



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-03-27 13:39:13 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 19) 

 
Page 6 of 6 

B. No one may be appointed to a position, within a City department, if related or connected by 
consanguinity within the fourth degree or by affinity within the second degree to any person sitting on 
a board or commission representing or advising that department.  

C. The above shall include but not be limited to the following:  

1. City Commission;  

2. Board of Adjustment;  

3. Board of Health;  

4. Housing Authority;  

5. Library Board;  

6. Park and Recreation Board;  

7. Parking Commission;  

8. Planning Board and Zoning Commission;  

9. Police Commission;  

10. Business Improvement District;  

11. Tourism Business Improvement District; and  

12. Great Falls Ethics Committee.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

2.21.120 Distribution. 

The City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Code of Ethics to be distributed to every public officer and employee of the 
City within thirty (30) days after enactment. Each public officer and employee elected, appointed, or engaged 
thereafter shall be furnished a copy before entering upon the duties of his or her office or employment.  

(Ord. 3169, 2017). 

 


